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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their strategic report on the Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited group (the "Group” or
"Bluestone®) for the year ended 30 June 2019,

Review of the business

Bluestone originates, manages and funds loan and recevables portfalios in its core markets in the UX and Ireland.
Generally, operating conditions have contimued to improve in these markets with the Group successfully completing a
number of term funding transactions to support the development of its lending businesses. These inciuded the private
placement of notes secured by €50m of Insh auto loans under the Group's Topaz program and the inaugural
securitisation for the Group’s residential mortgage business with the £230m Genesis 2019-1 RMBS commenced in june

2019 and completed shortly after the year end.

The Group recorded a loss after tax from continuing operations of £1 5m (2018° £4 1m) Net income increased in the year
to £17.8m (2018: £16 Om}, driven by the growth in both the UK Mortgages and Insh Auto business. Operating expenses
increased to £19.9m {2018: £18.3m) to support the growth of the lending businesses and the diversification into UK
Consumer Lending which, 1t is proposed, will be launched in 2020

Management and Directors use a number of key performance indicators to manage the business As a lending business
the main focus 1s on quality and size of the lending book.

KPI 2019 2018
Net Interest Income Margin (% of average book) 5 34% 11.42%
Portfolio Size £319m £146m
Bad Debt Expense (% of average book) 122% 2.66%

Net Interest Income Margin has decreased due to the growth of the lower margin mortgages portfolio relative to the
growth of the higher margin auto loan pontfohe. The reduction in bad debt expense aiso reflects this growth as arrears
and expected losses in the Mortgage portfolio are low relative to the auto lean portfoho

The principal areas of uncertainty, with potentially material impact on the Financial Statements, where the Diwrectors have
expressed judgement concern the following:

- Abad debt provision 1s recorded in the Income Statement to take account of credit nisk on ongnated and acquired
mortgages and vehicle loans This is calculated in two stages. Specific provisions are based on the Group's Special
Servicing team's estimate of losses for current assets in possession, Portfolio provisions use historical data to
calculate a prabability of foreclosure given a loan's seasoning and arrears status and apply those probabilities te the
outstanding balance of the current portfolio.

The Group recognises certain assets and liabilities using an effective interest rate method The forecast expected cash
flows associated with these assets and liabihties are spread across the life of the asset/liabhty to ascertain an
effective interest rate, being the rate which exactly discounts the cash fiows back to the stated balance of the asset or

liabity



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

The Group's activitizs expose it to a variety of financial nisks including market nisk (iIncluding currency nsk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and hquidity risk. The Group's overall sk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge certain risk exposures Derivatives are
used exclusively for hedging purposes and not for trading or other speculative purposes. The Group uses different
methods to measure different types of risks to which it 1s exposed. These methods include ageing analysis for credit risk
and maturity analysis for liquidity risk. For further detail see the Financial Risk Management section of the Directors'

Report.

Warehouse facilities are typically short term funding faciittes with maturities up to 24 manths, befare being refinanced in
the term markets. All of the Group’s facilities expire in excess of 6 months from the date of signing the financial
statements. The Directors are satisfied that either these facilities will be extended on commensurate terms, or any sale of
the mortgages within the warehouse facihty would be sufficient to repay the facilities at maturity, and will not affect the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concerm.

The Group 1s commutted to maintaining a robust and effective corpcrate governance framework. The Board has
established a number of sub-committees to operate both at a Group level and for individual business units. The
committee structure also takes into account the various regulatory requirements in both of the jurisdictions, United
Kingdom and ireland, in which the Group operates in addition, all of the business units hold formal board meetings each
month Members of each of the sub committees and directors of subsidiary boards are selected from the executive
management teams to ensure an appropriate level of skills and experience is present at each meeting. In addition, where
relevant, non executive directors are appointed to supplement executive management's skills and experience and
provide independence The key commuttees at a Group level are the Audit, Risk & Comphiance Committee and the
Appointments & Remuneration Committee.

On behalf of the board

\/

Al leffery
Executive Chairman

Date:  eem=plowesmbey 2019
19 Oecember



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report on the audited consolidated entity consisting of Bluestone Consolidated Holdings
Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of and during the financial year ended 30 June 2019.

Directors
The names of the Directors of the Company who served during the financial year and up to the date of signing the
financial statements are:

Mr A. Jeffary

Mr P. McGuinness
Mr A.Cameran
Mr A, Cumming
Ms P. Khroud

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Group duning the financial year were the operation of its iending and asset management

businesses in the United Kingdom and Ireland.

Future Developments
The Group has positioned ntself to pursue future loan origination, servicing and portfoho acquisition programs in UX and
Ireland. Growth inte the UK Consumer Lending market is proposed to be launched in 2020

Going Concern
The Group's lending operations are funded by a variety of sources, comprising securitised notes issued by special purpose

entities {("SPEs"), warehouse loan facilities and a corporate loan facility.

The secuntised notes issued by special purpose entities are repayable by reference to receipts from loans and only have
recourse to the assets in the relevant special purpase entity, and therefore there is no impact on the going concern
position of the Group.

The warehouse loan facilities are largely secured against the specific mortgage loans with hmited recourse to assets of the
other entities in the Group

Although the warehouse lozn facilities totalling £294,276,020 {of which £243,955,102 was utilised as at the balance sheet
date) have maturity dates within 12 months of the date of approving the financial statements, during the past 4 years,
regular extensions have been obtained from the facility providers on terms consistent with each previous extension and
the directors expect further extensions £o be avatlable at the end of the current loan period. Whilst there is no absolute
certainty that the warehouse loan facilities will be renewed, given there is limited recourse to the assets of other entities
in the Group there 1s no iImpact on the geing concern position of the Group should the warehouse loan facilities not be

renewed.

The corporate loan facility totals £7,500,000 and falls due within 12 months of the date of approving the financial
statements. Whilst there is no absolute certainty the Directors are confident that the facility will ether be refinanced or
repaid from available cash resources when the facility falls due.



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT [continued)

The Directors have considered the future cash flow forecasts for the remainder of the Group's operations, excluding the
cash flows ring-fenced within the SPEs and warehouses, and have determined that there is sufficient cash available to
continue its operations for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

During the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements, the Company had arranged Directors' and Officers
liability insurance which covers all the Directors and Officers of the Company and its controlled entities against certain
habitities they may incur in carrying out their duties for the consolidated entity

Post Balance Sheat Events

On 16 August 2019 Bluestone Finance 1 Limited securitised €28,822,023 of loan receivables at a premium to par of
€2,132,830, with a commitment to sell a further €13,654,573 of loan recevables at a premium to par of €718,661 to
Topaz Asset Finance 2019-1 DAC a related parted by virtue of being controlled by Bluestone Consolidated Holdings
Lermited,

On 28 August 2019 Bluestone Mortgages Limited completed its first UK RMBS issuance backed by originated mortgages
with the £210m Genesis 2019-1 securitisation.

On 22 August 2019 the group increased the capacity on the 8luestone Mortgage Finance No 3 Limited warehouse facility
to £278m

Employees
Details of the average number of employess durng the year are shown In note 23. The average number of employees in
the year to 30 June 2019 was 189 a rise of 35 (23%) on the previous year.

The Group is commutted to employment policies based on equal opportunities for all employees. The Group gives full and
fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes and
abilities Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued employment and training, career development and
promotian of disabled persons employed by the Group. If members of staff become disabled the Group continues
employment, either in the same or an alternative position, with appropriate retraining being given if necessary,

The Group systermatically provides emptoyees with information on matters of concern to them, consulting them or their
representatives regularly, so that their views can be taken into account when making decisions that are hkely to affect
their interests The Group encourages the involvement of employee's by means of whole office meetings where
employees have the opportunity to hear from regional management on the Group’s developments and ask questions.
These can also be submitted anonymously beforehand should employees prefer

The Group has an empioyee share scheme, further detasis of which are in note 23.

Dividends
During the year, the Company paid dividends of £2,075,175 (2018: £11,561,539).

Financial Risk Management

{al The activities of the Group centre on two key regions (the United Kingdom and Republic of freland) with significant
revenue and/or expenditure in Great Bntish Pounds (GBP) and Euro (EUR). The majority of the FX exposure 1s as a
result of investments in consohdated Irish subsidiaries with £X variances going to reserves,



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)

{b) The Group's main interest rate risk arises from mortgage and vehicle loans, cash deposits and interest bearing
lhabilities. To the extent the loans are 1ssued at variable rates and expose the Group to interest rate risk, the rnisk 1s
naturzlly hedged by variable rate borrowing. Mortgages written at fixed interest rates are fully hedged with interest
rate swaps to match the borrowings used to fund the mortgages

Credst risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial foss to
the Group The Group has no significant concentrations of mortgage or vehicle loan customer credit risk. Mortgage
and vehicle loans consist of a large number of customers spread across UK and Ireland. The Group has procedures in
place to ensure that sales of mortgage products are made to customers within the Group's credit and security policy
criteria  The Group retains the registered mortgages over property and security over vebicles until the loans are
repaid. The Group is entitled to take possession of and enforce the security :n the event that the customer defaults
under the terms of their loan The Group has also acquired loan receivable assets in ireland and the UK. These loans
are predominantly credit impaired and were acquired at a significant discount to face. The Group continues to
monitor the loan performance and any variation in carrying value 15 recognised 1n the Income Statement

{c

Prudent liquidity risk management implies marmtaining sufficiznt cash together with the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed eredit facilities The Group's finance department also monitors forecast
and actual cash flows to ensure that sufficient cash resources and/or financing facilities are n place to ensure the
Group can meet its habihties as and when they fall due

o

Provision of Information to Auditors
Each director of the Company at the date the Directors' report is signed confirms that:

{a) sofar as the diractor is aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware,
and

{b) the director has taken all of the steps that they ought to bave taken as a director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

14 Ogcember

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors made on  Nevesmser 2019

On behalf of the board

P T. McGuinness
Executivé Chairman Director

.5



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBHITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adepted by the European Union. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company
and of the profit or loss of the group and company for that period In prepaning the financial statements, the directors are
required to:

» select sustable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting esttmates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the group financal
statesments and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the company financial
statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

prepare the financial statements an the going concern Hasis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company and the Group will continue in business

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties.

The directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group
and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integrnity of the company’s website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other
Jurnisdictions.

19 December

Signed 1n accordance with a resclution of the Directors made on  “Neoeemiet 2019

On behalf of the board

L P.T. McGuinness
airman Director

Al JeHfery
Executive



Independent auditors’ report to the members of Bluestone
Consolidated Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinton
In our opinion, Biuestone Consolidated Holdings Limited’s group financial statements and company financial statements
{the “financisl statements”):

«  give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 30 June 2019 and of the
group’s loss and the group’s and the company's cash flows for the year then ended;

»  have been properly prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the company’s financial statements, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

+  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Anpual Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual
Report”), which comprise: the group and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2019; the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the group and company statements of cash flows, and the group and company
statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which includea
description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Apditing {UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under 1SAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficicnt and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled pur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
ISAs (UK) require us fo report to you when:
» thedirectors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropnate; or
+ thedirectors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast

significant doubt about the group’s and company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the finzncial statements are authorised for

issue,
‘We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters,

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is nat a guarantee as to the group’s
and company's ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw
from the European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the group’s trade,
customers, suppliers and the wider economy,

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an appatent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are réquired to perform procedures to conclude whether there is 2 material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that



there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these respongsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Straterqe Report and Tirectors” Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2019 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicabie legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o frand or esror.

In preparing the financiai statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to ¢ease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responmbilities for the it of the financal statements

Qur cbjectives are to obtair: reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance i3 8 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Uise of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whaose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.




Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

»  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

C ophec:qmw {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cambridge

{ 9 December 2019



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Mate Group
2019 2018
£ £
Interest income 3 21,502,520 17,534,280
Interest expense and sirmilar charges 3 {9,084,824) (4,830,988)
Net interest income 12,417,696 12,703,292
Net fee and commussion income 3 2,150,584 814,056
Other income 3 3,235,373 2,525,227
5,385,857 3,339,283
Total income net of interast and other income 17,803,653 16,042,575
Expenses
Marketing {340,471} (408 862)
Depreciation 3 (593,898) {1,565,722)
Employee costs 3 (10,499,296} (8,260,942)
Professional fees {2,044,978) (2,037,376}
General office costs {2,132,991) (1,435,688}
Occupancy costs (969,537) (1,311,136}
Bad debt expense (2,804,798) {2,942,26£0)
Travel and Entertainment i {494,715) {374,410)
Total operating expenses {19,880,684) {18,336,396)
Loss before income tax {2,077,031) (2,293,821}
Income tax credit / {expense} 4 . 588,240  (1,767,533)
Loss for the year from continuing operations {1,488,791) [4,061,354)
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 31 - 22,419,610
{Loss) / Profit for the year {1,488,791) 18,358,256
(Loss) / Profit for the year attributable to:
- Non controlling interest {120,097} {128,289)
Owners of the parent _{1,368,694} 18,486,545
{1,488,791) 18,338,256

-10-



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note Group
2019 2018
£ £

(Loss) f profit for the year {1,488,791) 18,358,256
Other comprehensive expense
Items that may be reclassified ta profit and loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign cperations {105,899) {528,853}
Total other comprehensive (expense) [105,899) (528,853)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year (1,594,5§0} L ;733291493
Total comprehensive {expense) / income for the year attributahle to:
- Non controlling interest {120,097} {128,289)
- Owners of the parent (1,474,593) _ 17,957,692

__ (1,594,690) , 17,829,403

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

-11-



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents {excluding bank
overdrafts}

Recelvables

Loans held at amorused cost

Dther Investments

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Payables

Interest-bearing liabihties
Current tax liabihities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Contributed equity

Reserves

Retamed earnings

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non controlling interest

Total equity

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note

W~ own

ol
L)

13
14
15

18
18

AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

_ _ Group
2019
£

21,723,323
5,022,556
319,034,857

1,415,228
1,535,672
348,731,636

(6,374,662
{324,863,007)

(331,237,669)

17,493,967

157,375
{24,269,262)
40,898,547
16,786,560

707,307
17,493,967

2018

18,309,661
3,019,438
145,919,483

1,078,915
1,039,386
169,366,887

{6,990,782)
(141,146,198)
{66,075

" (148,203,055)

21,163,832

157,375
(24,163,363}
44,342,416
20,336,428

827,404
21,163,832

_ Company
2019
£

5,485,793
18,272,038
106,308
23,864,139
(112,477
(21,813}
(134,250)
23,729,849
157,375
(10,252,267)
33,864,741
23,729,849

23,729,849

2018
£

3,751,741
3,997,766

19,045,980

106,308
26,901,795

(93,278}

{93,278)
26,808,517
157,375

(10,292,267}
36,943,409
26,808,517

26,808,517

The statement of financial position above should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Bluestone Conschidated Holdings Limited recorded a loss for the year ended 30th lune 2019 of £1,003,493 (2018: profit

VA Oecember

£27,077,601).

The financial statements on pages 11 to 54 were authonsed for 1ssue by the board of Directors on

were signed on its behalf.

AL Jeffery
Executive Chairman

Date:  November 2019
Company number- 08753310

-12-
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

GROUP
Non
Contributed Retained Controlling
Equity Resarves earnings Interest
Note £ £ £ £
Balance at 1 July 2017 11,680,191 (23,897,622) 54,415,036 955,693
Profit / {Loss) for the year . 18,486,545 [128,289)
Other comprehensive B (528,853} - -
expense for the year
Total comprehensive
[expense} / inceme for the
year - (528,853) 18,486,545 (128,289}
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Buy back of ordinary shares 18 (11,522,816} - (16,997.626) -
Emplaoyee share scheme 20 . 263,112 -
reserve
Dividends paid 24 - {11,561,539) -
111,522,816} 263,112 (28,559,165)
Balance at 30 June 2018 157,375 {24,163,363) 44 342 416 827,404
Loss for the year - - {1,368,694) (120,097)
Other comprehensive - {105,899) - -
expense for the year
Total comprehensive
{enpense) / income for the
year - {105,899) {1,368,694) (120,097)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Dividends paid 24 - - 12.075.175)
- {2,.075,175)
Balance at 30 June 2019 - 157,375 {24,269,262) 40,898,547 767,307

The above graup statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

-13-

Total
Equity

42,153,298

18,358,256
{528.853)

17,829,403
(28,520,442)
263,112

{11,561,539)
(39,818,369)

21,163,832

[1,488,791)
(105,899}

{1,594,690)

{2,075,175}
(2,075,175}

17,493,967



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

COMPANY
Contributed
Note Equity Reserves
E £
Balance at 1 July 2017 11,680,191 (10,555,379}
Profit for the year -
Total comprebensive income for the year -
Transactions with owners in thelr capacity as owners
Buy back of ardinary shares 18 (11,522,816) -
Employee share scheme 20 - 263,112
Dividends pad 24 - i
{11,522 31¢& 263,112
Balance at 30 June 2018 157,375 (10,292,267)
Loss for the year
Total comprehensive expense for the year } - -
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Diwvidends pad 24
Balance at 30 June 2019 157,375 (10,292,267)

Retained

earnings

£
38,424,973
27,077,601
27,077,601

(16,997,6256)

{11,561,539)
{28,559,165)

36,943,409
(1,003,433}
(1,003,493)
(2,075,175}
(2,075,175}

33,864,741

The above statement of changes in eguity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

14-

Total
Equity
£

39,549,785

27,077,601
27,077,601

(28,520,442)

263,112
{11,561,539)
(39,818,369)

26,808,517
[1,003,493)
(1,003,403)
(2,075,175}
{2,075,175)

23,729,849



Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest and sirmilar income receved
Interest and other finance costs paid
Net loan advances

Net mortgages advanced

Income tax paid

BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Net cash flows generated from f{used by)

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Sale of Mortgage Assets
Net proceeds fram sale of subsidiary

Net cash generated from [(used in) investing

actlvities

Cash flows from financing activitias
Buy back of shares
Proceeds from borrowings
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease] in cash and cash equivalents

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial

Note Group

2019 2018
£ £
2,581,714 4,911,149
(18,418,838) (12,618,227}
28,964,314 15,469,017
{15,440,506) (9,137,259}
176,138,047 67,991,806
(174,137,083} (66,538,104}
(166,458) §293,229)
(478,810) {214,847)
{929,289) {920,112)
- 5,809,388
2,557,210
{929,283) 7,446,486
- (28,520,442)

7,500,000 .
24 (2,075.175) (11,561,539}
h 5,424,825 {40,081,981)
4,016,726 (32,850,342)
(603,064) (996,071
18,309,661 52,156,074
21,723.323 18,309,661

Company
2019
£
129,117

{1,383,468)

{1.244.352)

{2,075,175)

(2,075,175)
(3.319,527)

(1)

3,751,741

432,213

The statement of cash flows above should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2018
£

151,884

151,884

43,559,632
43,599,632

(28,520,442)

(11,561,539)

(40,081,981}

3,665,535

82,206

3,751,741

Cash and cash equivalents of the group at 30 June 2019 include £16,502,140 (2018: £7,720,947) that Is not available for
use by the Group, as 1t is quarantined within special purpose entities in accordance with legal documents governing the

vehicles - see also note 5.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) onginate, acquire and manage
portfolios of loans and recewvables.

The Company Is a private company limited by shares which is domiciled and incorporated in England. The address of the
registered office 1s:

1 Station Square
Cambridge
CB1 2GA

Directors:
Mr A. Jeffery
Mr P. McGuinness
Mr A. Cameron
Mr A, Cummung
Ms P Khroud

1. Summary of accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years of presentation unless otherwise stated The financial statements are for
the consolidated entity consisting of Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited and its controlled entities

{a} Basis of Preparation

The Group and Company financial statements of Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Accounting Standards (IFRS) and IFRS Inter pretations Committee {IFRS iC)
pronouncements as adopted by the European Union and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

None of the new standards and amendments to standards that are mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 July 2018 matenally affected any of the amounts recognised in the current peried or any prior penad and are
not likely to affect future periods

Early adoption of standards
The Group has not elected to apply any standards or pronouncements before their operative date in the annual reporting

period beginning 1 July 2018.

New accounting standards
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards were in 1ssue but not yet effective.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on of after
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

The Standard above has not been applied in preparing these finanoial statements The Directors have assessed the impact
of {FRS 16 on the Group. In comparison to IAS17 there 1s no material impact on the net assets nor the income statement
in the impiementation of IFR516.

Going Concern
The Group's lending cperations are funded by a variety of sources, comprising secuntised notes issued by SPEs and
warehouse loan facilities and a corporate loan facility.

The securitised notes issued by special purpose entities are repayable by reference to receipts from loans and only have
recourse to the assets in the relevant special purpose entity, and therefore there 1s no impact on the going concern
position of the Group

The war=house ioan facilities are largely secured against the specific mortgage loans of the relevant warehouse with
hmited recourse to the other entities in the Group.

Although the warehouse loan facilities totalling £294,276,020 (of which £243,955,102 was utilised as at the balance sheet
date) have maturity dates within 12 months of the date of approving the finanrial statements, during the past 4 years,
regular extensions have been obtained from the faciity providers on terms consistent with each previous extension and
the directors expect further extensions to be available at the end of the current loan period. Whiist there is no absolute
certainty that the warehouse loan facilities will be renewed, given there s imited recourse to the other entities in the
Group there 1s no impact on the gaing concern position of the Group should the warehouse loan facilities not be
renewed,

The corporate loan facility totals £7,500,000 and falls due 12 months of the date of approving the financial statemants.
Whitst there is no absolute certainty the Directors are confident that the facility will either be refinanced or repaid from
available cash resources when the facility falls due

The Directors have considered the future cash flow forecasts for the remainder of the Group’s operatians, excluding the
cash flows ring-fanced within the SPEs and warehouses, and have determined that there 1s sufficient cash available to
continue 1ts operations for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements.

Historical Cost Convention
These financial statements have been prepared under tha historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of

dervative financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certan cnitical accounting estimates. It aiso requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies The areas where
assumptions and estimates are sigmificant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 2.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NDTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Critical Accounting Estimates (continued)

{b} Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and habilities of all controlled entities of Bluestone
Consolidated Holdings Limited as at 30 fune 2019 and their results for the year then ended Bluestone Consolidated
Holdings Limited and its controlled entities together are referred to in these financial statements as the Group or the
consolidated entity.

Controlled entities are al! those compames and SPEs over which the Group has the power to govern the financiai and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting nights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity,

When assessing whether the Group controls (and therefore consohdates) a SPE, judgement s required about risks and
rewards as well as the Group's ability to make operational decisions for the SPE. The range of factors that are considerad
n assessing controt are whether: {a) a majority of benefits of an SPE's activities are retained; {b} a majonty of the residua!
ownership risks related to the SPE's assets are retained; (c) the decision-making powers of the SPE vest with the Group;
and (d) the SPE's actiities are being conducted on behalf of the Group and according to its specific business needs.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controliing interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-contredling interests and any consideration paid or receved is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of Bluestone Cansolidated Holdings Limitad.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost, and where there 15 an indicator of impairment, assessed at recoverable
amount in the individual financial statements of Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited

{c) Income Tax

The income tax expense or revenye for the period 15 the tax payable/receivable on the current period's taxable iIncome
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and tabilities
attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when assets
are recovered or liabilities settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantwely enacted at the balance
sheet date for each junsdiction The relevant tax rates are appiied to the cumulative amounts of deductible temporary
differences to measure the deferred tax asset and hability. An exception 1s made for certain temporary differences
ansing from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability 1s recogmsed in relation to
these temparary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business comhbination, that at the time of the
transaction did not affect either accounting profit or taxabie profit or loss.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{c) Income Tax {continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it 1s probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax habilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in cantrolled entities where the parent is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeabte future

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authornity Current tax assets and liabilities ara
offset when the entity has a tegally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and liability simultaneousiy.

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in
equity.

{d) Foreign Currency Translations

(i) Functional and Presentational Currencies

Items included in the financiat statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial stataments
are presented in UK sterling, which is Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited’s functional and presentation currency.

{ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and ksses resulting from the settlement of such foreign turrencies
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and Labilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

{iii) Group Companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

- assets and habihties for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;
income and expenses for each iIncome statement are translated at average exchange rates {unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and
ail resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income

.19-



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
(d) Foreign Currency Translations (continued)

(iii}) Group Companies {(continued}

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is sold or borrowings repaid, a proportionate share of such exchange differences are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

{e} Income Recognition
The principail sources of income are:

{i) nterest Income

Interest income ansing from laans is brought to account using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest
method calculates the amortised cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income or expense over the
relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument. Fees and transaction costs associated with the origination of the
ioans are caprtabsed and included in the effective interest rate and recognised over the expected life of the loan

{i1) Fees and Commission
Fees and commission not associated with the origination of the loan are recognised as the amounts become irrevocably
due and payable Revenue is generally measured at fair value of the consideration receved or receivable.

(f) Investments and Other Financial Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss,
loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments. The classification depends upon the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. The Group determinas the classification of its financial assets at imtial recognition and, in
the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity, re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date.

Loans held at amortised cost

All martgage and vehicle lpan receivabies are treated as loans held at amortised cost  They are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and mcremental costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment provistans.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cantinued)

{g) tmpairment of Assets and Provisions for Doubtful Debts

Assats that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment ioss 1s recogmised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recovarable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sefl and value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

A bad debt provision is recorded in the income Statement to take account of credit risk on 1ssued mortgage and vehicle
loans held at amortised cost. The prowvision for doubtful debts includes individually assessed provisions and collectively
assessed provisions. Individually assessed provisions are based on an independent valuation of the security adjusted by
any cost of selling, less the outstanding loan balance. In arriving at the collectively assessed provisions the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data which indicates there is a significant decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from mortgage receivables before the decrease can ke identified with an individual loan This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
portfolio or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the portfolio. The Group uses a rating
agency model to establbish expected credit losses on the ioan portfolio based on a3 number of loan characteristics. In
accordance with IFRS 9 the Group accounts for 12 months of expected credit losses (ECL) on performing assets (generally
less than 90 days in arrears with no other indication of increased credit risk) and lifetime expensed credit loss {(ECL) on
ungder performing or non-performing assets {30+ days arrears or where the Group 1s actively trying 1o or has recovered
the asset).

{h) Leased Assets

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of awnership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the mimmimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obhgations, net of
finance charges, are included in other long term payables. Each lease payment is allocated between the liabslity and
finance cost. The interest element of the finance cost 1s charged to the iIncome statement over the lease period 50 as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant
and equipment acquired under finance leases 1s depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term

Leases in which a significant partion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retatned by the Jessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the incormne statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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BLUESTONE CONSQUDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{i) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure which s
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured relably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial periog 10 which they are incurred.

Depreciation 1s provided on property, plant and equipment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to
write off the net cost of each asset over its expected useful life. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
period of the lease or estimated useful life, whichever is the shorter, using the straight-line method. The following
estimated useful hives are used 1n the calculation of depreciation:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term and 5 years
Equipment under Finance Lease 5 years
Plant and equipment 3-S5 years

(i} Payabhles
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity pnor to the end of the
financial year, which are unpaid The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

(k) Employee Entitlements

(i) Wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilines for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be settied within 12
months of the reparting date are recogmsed as labilities 1n respect of employees' services up to the reporting date and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

{ii) Retirement benefit obligations
Contributions to the defined contribution superannuation fund are recognised as an expense as they become payable.

{iii) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit sharing based on a formula that takes inta
consideration the profit attributable to the Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

{fiv) Other employee related 1tems
Employee benefit on-costs, including payroll tax, are recognised and included in employee benefit liabihities and costs
when the employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 IUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES {rontinued)
(k) Employee Entitlements {continued)

(v) Share based payments

The Group awards C shares to certain employees (including executive directors} The grant-date fair value of the shares
awarded i1s recognised as an employee expense i the Income statement, with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period that the employeas become uncenditionally entitled to the awards

{l) interest Bearing Liabilities

Interest bearing higbihties are imbially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs tncurred such as legal fees and
other consultancy costs incurred in relation to developing the funding structures and associated financing facilities.
Interest bearing liabilities are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Pravisions are measured at the present value of the Group's best estimate of the expenditure required to settie the
present obligation at the reporting date The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the Lability The increase in provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as interest expense.

{n) Equity issued by the Company
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

(o) Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

{p} Cash

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash includes ¢cash on hand, deposits at call with financial institutions and
other highly iquid investments with short periods to matunty which are readily convertible to cash on hand and are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash also includes amounts held
by consolidated special purpose entities which 1s quarantined within the entity for distribution to bondholders in
accordance with the legal documents governing the vehicle.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDAYTED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2019

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)}

{q) VAT

Revenues, expenses and assets are recogmsed net of the amount of VAT, except:

(i} where the amount of VAT incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, when itis recocgnised as part of the
cost of the asset or expense,

{n) far receivables and payables, which are recognised inclusive of VAT.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of recewvables or
payables. Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The VAT component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authorty, is classified
as operating cash flows.

(r) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acqguisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of the acquisttion. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidianes is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised. instead, goodwill is tested for impairment annually and carned at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposai of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwiil
relating to the entity sold.

{s) Business Combinations

The excess of the consideratian transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recerded as goodwill, If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the subsidiary acquired and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange The discount rate used 1s the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being
the rate at which a similar borrowing could be abtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and
condrtions.

{t) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are imtially recogrised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
measured at fair value at each reporting date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether
the derivative 1s designated as a hedging instrument, and if 5o, the nature of the item being hedged.

Fair value changes on derivatives that are not designated or do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in profit
or loss when the changes arise.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between the hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its nsk management objective and strategies for undertaking vanous hedging transactions. The Group
also documents 1ts assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives designated
as hedging instruments are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged items
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are hased on historical expernence and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are beheved to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Changes to assumptions used for estimating future cash flows could result in changes to reportad
results The Group has no critical judgements but the cntical estimates are listed below.

(a) Loan Loss Provision

The provision for doubtful debts ncludes individually assessed provisions and collectively assessed provisions.

Individually assessed provisions are based on an independent valuation of the security adjusted by any cost of selling, less
the outstanding loan balance. In arriving at the collectively assessed prowisions the Group makes judgements as to
whether there ts any observable data which indicates there 1s a significant decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from mortgage loans recewvables before the decrease can be identified with an individua! loan. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a portfolio or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the portfolio. The Group uses a rating agency model
to established expected future losses on the loan portfolio based on a number of loan characteristics Based on
experience over the (ast three years the Group then models the emergence of these losses when scheduling its future
cash flows In accordance with IFRS 9 the Group accounts for 12 months of expected credit losses (ECL) on performing
assets (generalily less than 30 days in arrears with nc other indication of increased credit risk) and lifetime expectad credit
loss (ECL) on under performing or non-performing assets (90+ days arrears or where the Group 1s actively trying to or has
recovered the asset)

{b) Effective Interest Rate

Fee income and expenses which are associated with the loans and vehicle loans receivables and the note liabilities are
spread aver the life of the loans/notes on an effective interest rate basis. Where income has been received or expenses
paid upfront the actual amount received/incurred 1s spread over the fe of the loans/notes. Where income is to be
recerved or expenses to be incurred at a future date an estimate of the amounts to be recewved/paid 1s made based on
the expected characteristics of loans/notes on a portfolio basis.

{c) Tax Losses

The Group has a number of tax losses which are recognised in the financial statements as a deferred tax asset to the
extent to which it is considered probable that future taxable profits will be available in future periods against which the
losses can be utilised. An assessment is made each year of the future taxable profits which are probable based on the
expected future taxable profits from earnings plus the extent to which any timing differences recognised will reverse and
generate taxable income.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

3. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss from ardinary activities before income tax includes the following items of revenue:

Interest and simslar income
On loan balances
On cash balances

Interest expense and similar charges
On mortgage and vehicle loan financing
On other borrowings

Net interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission iIncome

Other income/(expense}

Fair value gains/{losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss*
Gain on sale of mortgages

Other income

Total income net of interest and other income

* included within this fair value movement is a loss of £nul (2018: £n1l) relating to credst risk

Expenses include:
Depreciation and amartisation:
Plant and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Assets held under Finance Leases
Write down of Software development costs

Included within other income from operating actwities:
impairment of goodwill
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Group
2019

21,491,177
11,343
21,502,520

(9,018,325)
_ (66,439)
(9,084,824)

12,417,696

6,085,085
(3,934,501)
2,150,584

3,063,838
171,535
13,235,373

17,803,653

(459,773)
(134,125)

{593,898)

7 2018

15,679,523
1,854,757
17,534,280

{4,690,066)
(140,922)
{4,830,988)

12,703,292

3,109,965
{2,295,909)
814,058

2,339,957
185,270
2,525,227

16,042,575

(727,247)
{86,315)
{20,688)

(731,472)

{1,565,722)

(878,537)



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 fUNE 2019

3. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX {continued)

Group
2019 2018
£ £
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the parent Company and the consolidation:
Total audit fees
- Audit of the Parent Company pursuant to legislation 7,200 27,884
- Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to fegislation 141,893 125,471
- Taxation compliance services 50,825 100,005
- Other services 64,185 15,480
- Corporate finance services 323,440 213,400
Total auditors' remuneration 587,543 486,240
Employee Benefits Expense: £ £
Wages and Salaries 9,462,155 7,327,426
Social Security Costs 966,827 902,902
Other Pension costs 70,314 30,614
10,499,296 8,260,942

Sea note 23 for further detaifs of employees
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

4. INCOME TAX CREDIT / (EXPENSE)

{a) Income tax {credit) / expenses

Aggregate income tax expense comprises:
Current tax
Adjustment 1n respect of prior year {current tax)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax income/(expense] included in the iIncome tax expense comprises:
increase/(decrease) in deferred tax assets
increase in deferred tax liabilities

{b) Reconciliation of income tax {credit) / expense to theoretical tax payable

Group
2019

(108,654)
282

(496,287)

(604,669)

496,287

456,287

2018

369,289

(43,261)
1,441,505
1,767,533

(1,767,750}
326,245
(1,441,505)

The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from (2018: differs from) the thearetical amount which would arise using

the corporation tax rate applicable 1n the year as fallows:
Loss before income tax from continuing operations
Income tax credit at standard rate - 19% (2018 19%)
Tax effect of permanent differences

Differences in overseas tax rates

Non-deductible expenses
Non assessable intra-group income

Income tax adjusted for permanent differences
Tax losses not brought in to account as deferred tax assets
Adjustment in respect of prior year

Change in Tax Rate

Income tax {credit)/expense

28

{2,077,031)
(394,635)

(234,615)
{51,826}

(681,075)

76,125
282

(504,669}

(2,293,821)
(435,825)
53,057
{16,599)
(243,924)
{543,291)
2,454,085
{61,868)
18,607

1,767,533



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

4. INCOME TAX CREDIT / (EXPENSE) (continued)

{c) Factars affecting future tax changes
UK corporation tax 1s calculated at 13% (2018: 19%) of the estimated assessable loss for the year. Taxation for other

junisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

In the Budget on 16 March 2016, the Chancellor announced that the standard rate of UK Corporation Tax witl be reduced
from 1 April 2020 to 17%. The deferred tax assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are calculated at the
substantively enacted rate of 17%

{d} Unused Tax Losses for which no deferred tax asset has baen recognised

Unutilised tax iosses for which np deferred tax asset has been recognised 13,150,766 12,750,107
Potential tax benefit at 17 00% (2018: 17%) 2,235,630 2,167,518
5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Cash held by consolidated special purpose
entities 16,502,140 7,720,947 . .
Other cash at bank and in hand 5,221,183 10,588,714 . 3,751,741
Bank overdraft (see note 14) - - (21,813} -
21,723,323 18,309,661 (21813) 3751741

Cash held by consolidated special purpose entities 1s quarantined within the entity and is distributed to notehaolders in
accordance with the legal documents governing the vehicle. Cash at bank earned interest at floating rates at an average
of nil (2018 0 66%).

Bank overdrafts of £21,813 are shown within interest bearing habilities in currant liabilities in the balance sheet.

6. RECEIVABLES

, Group B _Company R

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ £ £
Accounts Recewable 724,801 367,781 104,563 -
Prepayments 455,645 401,354 3 -
Accrued income 2,400,554 1,218,714 - -

Recewables from related parties - - 5,381,227 3,997,766
Sales tax recewvable 282,158 801,874 - -
Current tax 192,335 - - -

Qther 367,063 229,715 -
5,022,556 3,019,438 5,485,793 3,997,766

Recewvables from related parties are unsecured and interast free
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 IUNE 2019

6. RECEIVABLES {continued)

{a} Bad and daubtful receivables
No provisions for bad and doubtful debts have been recorded against receivables balances as all balances are within
agreed terms. A bad and doubtful debt provision has been raised against loans held at amortised cost, see note 7

{b) Fair values
The fair values of the recewables balances are not matenally different to their carrying amount in the financial

statements

{c) Effective interast rates and credit risk

The Group 15 not exposed to any significant credit risk on receivables as these amounts are short term in nature or
represent prepaid expenses or accrued income. None of the racewables are interest bearing

(d) Maturity of receivables

All recewvables are due within 12 months

7. LOANS HELD AT AMORTISED COS¥

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£ £ E £
Mortgage receivables 208,308,472 59,068,242 - -
Other lpans held at amortised cost 1,843,252 2,943,721 - -
Vehicle Loans 108,118,057 33,827,035 . .
Effective Yielded fees and commuissions 3,407,472 2,458,487 . -
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (2,642,396) {2,378,002) . -
319,034,857 145,919,483 - -

The mortgage receivables balance represents the gutstanding principal amounts, accrued interest plus amounts
capitalised under the effective interest rate method owed to the Group.

The mortgages are recevable from individual borrowers and are secured against the property. The credit risk on these
Ipans comprises the exposure to individual borrower circumstances and the fluctuations in property values,

The mortgage recewvables earn fixed and floating interest rates and earnad an average interest rate of 4 65% (2018:
3.78%). The mortgages have remaining terms of between 1 to 35 years (2018: 10 to 30 years), however prepayments can
be made by the borrowers and the average life of the loans is approximately 3 years (2018: 6 years) Included within the
year end balance is £23,998,724 (2018: £6,930,955) which 15 expected, based on current customer behaviour to be
received within 12 months.

The vehicle toans are recevable from individual borrowers and are secured against the vehicle. The credit risk on these
ipans comprises the exposure to individual borrower circumstances and the fluctuations in vehicle values.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

7. LOANS HELD AT AMORTISED COST {continued)

The vehicle loans earn a floating interest rate plus a margin above the base rate applicable in freland and earned an
average interest rate of 14 58% (2018 13 94%) The vehicle loans have terms of between 1 to 6 years (2018 2t0 5
years), however prepayments can be made by the borrowers and the average life of the loans is approximately 5 years
(2018: S years). Included within the year end balance is £23,941,485 which is expected, based on current customer
behaviour to be received within 12 months

The Group has recognised an expense of £2,804,798 (2018. £2,942,260) «n respect of bad and doubtful debt on criginated
mortgage and vehicle receivables during the year ended 30 June 2019.

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss represent:

- fixed rate mortgages on which interest rate swap contracts have been entered to swap the fixed interest rate to
fioating rate and formerly fixed rate mortgages where there had been interest rate swaps in place. Changes in fair
value are recorded in the income statement within other income / (expense}.

- Bluestone's acquired loan portfoiios including 8luestone's remaining interest In the Celeste securitised mortgage
book. Changes in value are recorded in the iIncome statement within interest income.

None of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are held for trading.

__Group
2019 2018
£ £
QOpening Balance - 39,849,184
Disposal of Australasian business - (38,084,737)
Cash received - (4,104,404)
Discharged Loans . .
Gains and losses recogrised i profit or lass - 2,339,957

Closing Balance - -

The Group had no financial assets designated as fair value through profit and loss in the year ended 30 june 2015

In the pnior year the Group realised a profit of £2,339,557 on amounts due from Basinghall Mortgage Finance No. 1
Limited arising as a result of the Celeste securrtisation. The Group disposed of its Australasian operations, which included
all remaining financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

9. OTHER INVESTMENTS

Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited holds investments in subsidiaries at a cost of £18,272,038 at 30 June 2019
{2018: £19,045,980). Fuil details of direct subsidiaries of the company are shown in note 25(b)

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group 7 Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Goodwill
Carrying amount at beginning of year - 2,181,825 - -
Disposal of Subsidiaries - (1,303,288) -
Impairment . {878,537) . -

Carrying amount at end of year - el L. -

No goodwill arose in the year to 30 June 2019

In the prior year the Group disposed of its Australian operations and fully impaired the goodwill associated with its
Blueston Credit Management business
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group Leasehold
Improvements
Cost £
At 1July 2017 988,744
Additions 234,425
Disposals (19,572}
write off of software davelopment -
Disposal of subsidiaries (443,322)
Fareign exchange differences {46,505}
At 30 June 2018 713,370
At 1 July 2018 713,370
Additions 214,435
Foreign exchange differences 1,417
At 30 lune 2019 929,222
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 July 2017 769,921
Depreciation 86,315
Depreciation - discontinued operations 59,777
Dispasals (19,572)
Write off of software development -
Disposal of subsidiaries (435,166)
Foreign exchange differences (42,205)
At 30 June 2018 419,070
At 1 July 2018 419,070
Depreciation 134,125
Fareign exchange differences 1,346
At 30 June 2019 554,541
Net Book Value
At 30 lune 2018 294,300
At 30 June 2019 374,681
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Plant and
Equipment
£

7,872,580
685,687
{644,073}
(1,846,777}
(3,194,743}
{296,243)
2,576,431

2,576,431
714,854
4,204
3,295,489

6,157,304
727,247
38,792
(644,070)
(1,115,305}
(3,126,724)
{245,381)
1,791,863

1,791,863
459,773
3,357
2,254,993

784,568
1,040,496

Equipment under
Finance Lease
£

1,090,930

(921,782)
(80,551)
88,597

88,597

88,557

1,078,537
20,688

(917,989)

{92,690)

88,546

88,546

88,546

51
51

Total
£

9,952,354

920,112
{663,645)
(1,846,777}
(4,559,847)
{423,699)

3,378,358

3,378,398
929,289
5,621
4,313,308

8,005,762
834,250
98,569
{663,642)
{1,115,305)
(4,479,879}
(380,276)
2,285,479

2,299,479
593,898
4,703
2,898,080

1,078,919
1,415,228



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

12. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The balance comprises

Accruals

Provision for doubtful debts
Employee entitlements

Tax losses

Property adjustments

Premium con asset purchase
Interest on internally hekd notes

13. PAYABLES

Accrued Interest payable on borrowings
QOther Accruals

Trade payables

Payroll liabilities

Payables to related parties

Other Payables

Payables are all due within 12 months.

Note

Group
2019

138,389
338,328
950
11,400
727,621
318,984
1,535,672

Group
2019
£

(536,394)
(2,146,310)
{2,118,224)

(261,636)
{1,312,098)
{6,374,662)

Payables to related parties are unsecured and interest free.
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2018

8,326
701,514
950

328,596

1,039,386

2018
£

{224,311)
(2,958,774}
{2,618,253)

(323,095)

(831,737)

{34,612)

(6,990,782)

Company
2019
£

106,308

106,308

Company
2019
£

{112,477)

{112,477)

2018

106,308

106,308

2018

(93,278)

{93,278)



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

14. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

Note Group Company .
2015 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Securitised loan notes (73,407,905} {61,722,135) - -
Borrowings (251,455,102} (79,424,003) - -
Bank overdraft - o (21,813) i
(324,863,007)  (141,146,198) (21,813) -

{a) Securitised Loan Notes
Notes issued by SPEs are repayable under the terms of the nate agreements. Interest is payable on the notes at fixed rate
of between 3% and 10.5% (2018: 3%. and 10.5%) The average interest rate paid during the year was 5.6% (2018 5.5%)

The notes have an expected life of 3 years (2018, 3 years) and are secured against the vehicle loan recevables detaded in
notes 8 and 9 The expected principal-pass-through to the funders s based on the expected prinaipal receipts from
vehicle loans. Calculations of expected principal receipts on vehicle loans have been derived using prepayment
assumptions that are based on historic experience, Based on current prepayment assumptions 1t is anticipated that
£8,457,150 (2018 £7,242,358) will be repaid within the next 12 months.

{b)} Borrowings

Borrowings include warehouse loan facilities totaling £243,955,102 {2018 £76,362,272) which have terms that expire in
excess of 6 months and within 12 manths from the balance sheet date and pay interest at a fixed rate of 3 months LIBOR
+ a fixed margin of between 1.8% and 12.65% {2018: 1 8% and 12 65%) or 1 month LIBOR + a margin of 2.25% (2018
2.25%), with an average of 2 97% (2018. 3.9%) or a ftoating rate of 3% aver a 3 month Euribor

The warehouse loan facilities are secured against the assets of the relevant warehouse with limited recourse to the other
entities or assets in the Group

Borrowings also include a corporate loan facility of £7 5m repayable in March 2020. The corporate facility pay interest at
15% and 15 fully drawn and guarantees have been prowvided on the facility by the Group's subsidiaries

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Used at balance sheet date 251,455,102 79,424,063 - -
Unused at balance sheet date 50,320,918 212,575,937 . .
301,776,020 292,000,000 - -

-35-



15. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Income tax payable

16. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Group
2019 2018
£ £

- {66,075)

Company
2019
£

Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited has no deferred tax liabilities 2t 30 June 2019 or 2018.

17. PROVISIONS

As at 1st July 2017

Charged to income statement

Disposal of subsidiarnes
As at 30th June 2018

As at 1st July 2018

Charged to income statement

Disposal of subsidiaries
As at 30th June 2019

Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited has no prowvisions at 30 June 2019 {2018:

18. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

{a) Share Capital

Empioyee
annual leave
£

{255,011}

255,011

none).

Group

Employee long
service leave
£

{122,755)

122,755

Issued and Fully Paid

2019 2019
No. [ 3

Ordinary Shares A Closs of £0.035 each {2018: £0.035) {Renamed
Ordinory Shares Class A from Ordinary Shares Class 8 on 28 March

2018)
At 1st July 2018
issued In year

Repurchase of own shares
Reclassification of own shares

At 30th June 2019

152,376

4,353,600

4,353,600 152,376

2018
No.

4,435,871

(82,271}

4,353,600

2018

Total
£
(377,766)

377,766

2018

155,255

{2,879}

152,376



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

18. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY {continued)
{a) Share Capital {continued)

On 28 March 2018 the company reclassifiecd ordinary shares B Class as ordinary shares A class. Prior to the shares being
repurchased and cancelled, Ordinary shares A Class holders were entitled to participate in dividends and to share in the
winding up of the Company in proportion to the number and amounts paid on the shares held. However, Ordinary shares
A class must nevar confer an entrtlement on the holders to more than 50% of any such distribution They were entitled to
appoint up to two persons as Directors and to remove any such person from office.

Every holder had the right to receive notice of and to attend, speak and vote at alt general meetings of the Company.
They were entitled to one vote per share provided that a single holder does not confer mare than 49.9% of the total
voting rights of all shares at any time. On 28th March 2018 the company bought back and cancelled 5,168,005 shares for
£3,488,063.

Ordinary Shores € Class of £0.01 each {2018: £0.01}

At 1st July 2018 499,923 4,999 280,600 2,806
Issued in the year - - 537,035 5,370
Conversion from D Shares - - 88,825 888
Conversion to and repurchase of C Fixed

return shares - - (2,040} (20)
Conversion to and repurchase of Deferred - - {26,851) {269)
Repurchase of own shares - - (377,646) (3,776)
Capital Reduction - - ) - -
At 30th june 2019 499,923 4,999 499,923 4,999

Ordinary Shares C Class of £0.01 each {2018: £0.01)

Ordinary shares C Class holders are entitled to participate in dividends and they do not have the right to attend, speak or
vote at general meetings of the Company On 28 March 2018 the company bought back and cancelled 377,646 shares for
£2,106,609.

On 16th Aprii 2014 8,304,123 Ordinary B Shares were 1ssued to existing shareholders of Bluestone Group Pty Ltd wishing
to convert their holding

Ordinary Shares D Class of £0.01 eoch (2018: £0.01)
Issued and Fully Paid

2019 2019 2018 2018

No. £ No. £

At 1st July 2018 - - 351,463 3,515
Conversion to C Shares . . (351,463)

At 30th June 2019
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

18. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY {continued)
{a) Share Capital (continued)

Ordinary Preferred Shares of £0.035 each (2018: £0.035)
I1ssued and Fully Paid

2019 2019 2018 2018
No. £ MNo. £
At 1st July 2018 - - 33,354,269 1,167,400
Issued in Year - - - .
Repurchase of own shares - - {33,354,269) {1,167,400)
At 30th June 2019 - - - -
On 28 March 2018 the company bought back 33,354,269 shares for £22,511,937
(b} Share Premium
2019 2018
£ £
Ordinary Shares A Class
At 1st July 19,120
Repurchase of own shares {19,120}
At 30th lune - .
Ordinary Preferred Shares
At 1st July - 16,677,135
Repurchase of own shares - (16,677,135)
At 30th June - -
{c) Equity Raising Expenses
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
At 1st July - {6,525,920) {6,525,920)
Repurchase of own shares . 6,525,520 - 6,525,920
At 30th June - - - -
{d) Contributed Equity
Group
2019 2018
£ £
Ordinary Shares A Class of £0 035 each ** 152,376 152,376
Ordinary Shares C Class of £0.01 each 4,959 4,999
157,375 157,375

** Renamed Ordinary Shares A Class from QOrdinary B Class on 28 March 2018
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

12. RESERVES

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 1,340,261 1,446,160 50 50
Share Based Payments Reserve 580,686 580,686 580,686 580,686

Minority Interest Acquisition Reserve {7,171,544) (7,171,544) - -
Marger Reserve (19,018,665) (19,018,665) (10,873,003) (10,873,003}
(24,269,262) {24,163,363) (10,292,267} {10,292,267)

{a) Foreign Currency Transiation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,446,160 1,975,013 50 50

Translation of foreign operations {105,899) (528,853) - -
Balance at the end of the financiai year 1,340,261 1,446,160 1] 50

Exchange differences arising from the translation of foreign operations have been recognised in the foregn currency
translation reserve as described in note 1{d). The reserve is recognised in the income statement when the net investment
in foreign operations are soid.

(b) Share Based Payment Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 580,686 317,574 580,686 317,574
Share 1ssuance expense S 263,112 - 263,112
Balance at the end of the financial year 580,686 580,686 580,686 580,686

The share based payments reserve 1s used to recognise the fair value of shares issued but not exercised.

{c) Minority Interest Acguisition Reserve

~ Group - - Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Balance at the beginning/end of the financial
year (7,171,544} {7,171,544) . .

The Minonty Interest Acquisition Reserve is used to record the difference between net assets acquired frem Minority
{nterests and face value of consideration paid

{d) Merger Reserve

Balance at the beginning/end of the finanaal
year (19,018,665) (19,018,665) (10,873,003) (10,873,003}

The Merger Reserve is used to recognise the difference between the pre-acquisition net assets of the Company (the net

assets of the consolidated Group for the Group figure) acquired as part of the capital re-orgamisation in 2014 and the
Face value of the shares issued as payment
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

20. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

{a) Key Management Personnel Compensation
Short term employee benefits

Post employment beneafits

Share based payments

Total compensation

The following personnel are considered Key Management Personnel at the year end-
Mr A, Jeffery (Executive Chairman)

Mr P.T. McGuinness (Group CED)

Mr A. Cameran {Non Executive Director)

Mr A. Cumming (Non Executive Director)

Ms P Khroud (Non Executive Director)

Mr A Voss (Chief Financial Officer)

{b} Directors' Emoluments
Directors' emoluments (including benefits in kind) for management sarvices

{c) Remuneration of the Highest Paid Director
Directors’ emoluments (including benefits in kind) for management services

(d) shares to Directors
Total number and value of shares granted during the year is as follows:

2019 2019
No. £

Ordinary Class C shares - -
Ordinary Class D shares . R

{e) Retirement Benefits

Group
2019
£

1,145,097
1,868

1,146,965

849,956
435,124
2018

No.
138,727

2018
£

1,770,319
1,010
364,249
2,135,578

1,367,397
718,415
2018

£
1,387

The aggregate retirement benefits paid to all Directors of the Company, by the Company or by any related party, during
the financia! year was £1,868 (2018: £1,010). The amount in respect of the highest paid Director dunng the financial year

was £934 (2018: £505)
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

21. COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£ £ £ £
Within one year 591,614 470,471 - -
Later than cne, not later than five years 1,275,333 981,639 - -
After 5 years 887,075 146,887 - B
2,754,022 1,598,997 - -

Operating lease commitments relate to mctor vehicles, office equipment, car parking spaces and office rent. Lease terms
are between 1 and 10 years (2018: 1 and 10 years).

22, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a} Directors' Remuneration
Details of the Directors and key management personnel's remuneration 1s disclosed in note 20 to the financial

statements

{b) Directors' Loans
At the Balance Sheet date the group had made loans to directors of £217,417 (2018: £175,976).

During the year certain Directors or related parties of the Directors provided £1.85m to the group as part of the
corporate loan facility. Interest amounting to £37,000 has been paid to the directars.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

23. EMPLOYEES

The figures below include executive Directors employed directly by the Group. The Company has no (2018 no)
employees.

(a) Monthly Average Number of People Employed

Group
2019 2018
No. No.
Capital Management 3 4
Loan Servicing 89 73
Loan Origination 58 a7
Administration 39 30
Total ' 154
(b) Employee Benefits Expense £ £
Wages and Salaries 9,462,155 7,327,426
Social Security Costs 966,827 502,902
Other Pension costs 70,314 30,614
10,499,296 8,260,342

(c) Share based payments

A scheme under which shares may be 1ssued by the Company to employees for no cash consideration was approved by
the Board on 17 February 2016. All employees are eligible to participate in the scheme Under the scheme, the
employees may be awarded fully pa/d ordinary class C shares in the Company annually for no cash consideration.

Awards of C Shares under the scheme are at the discretion of the Company and subject to the vesting terms determined
by the Group's Appointments and Remuneration Committee. In most cases, C Share awards vest over a 3 year period.
in March 2018, the Board resolved to remove the vesting terms on all issued € Shares. As a result, all C Shares currently

in1ssue are entitled to participate fully in distributions.

Each participant was issued with Class C shares with a grant date fair value of £1.88 {(2018: £1.88)
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 HJNE 2019

24. DIVIDENDS PAID

. Group -
2019 2018
£ £

(1) Ordinary shares A Class™
Final paid (2018): il (2017: 15.3p) per £0.035 share - 792,443
Interim paid (2019): nil (2018: nil} per £0.035 share - -

{i) Ordinary shares A Class**

Final paid (2018): 29.42p (2017: 17 2p) per £0.035 share 1,280,829 738,680
Interim paid (2018): 13.19p {2018. 123.6p) per £0.035 share 574,240 5,381,047
Special paid {2019): mi (2018: 82.4p) per £0.035 share - 3,588,235
(1i) Ordinary shares C Class

Final paid (2018): 29.42p (2017: 17 2p} per £0 01 share 154,166 31,192
interim paid (2019): 13 19p (2018: 123.6p) per £0 01 share 65,940 617,905
Special paid (2019): nil (2018: 82.4p) per £0 01 share . 412,037

2,075,175 11,561,539

* Ordinary Shares A Class cancelled on 28 March 2018
** Renamed Ordinary Shares A Class from Ordinary B Class on 28 March 2018
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

25. SUBSIDIARIES AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

{a) Controlied Entities

The Group had the following controlled entities at 30 June 2019:

Name of Controlled Entity

Country of
Incorporation

Bluestone APAC Holdings Limited

Bluestone Group Finance {lersey) Limited
Bluestone Asset Management Spain S L U
Bluestone Motor Finance {Ireland) DAC
Bluestone Capital Management Limited
Bluestone Portfolio Management (UK} Limited
Bluestone Credit Management Limited
Bluestone Retail Finance Limited

Bluestone Mortgages Limited

Bluestone Administrative Services (UK) Limited
Bluestone Mortgage Holdings Limited
Empingham Limited

Bluestone Asset Management (ireland) DAC
Bluestone Finance 1 Limited

Biuestone Martgage Finance No. 2 Limited -°
Bluestone Mortgage Finance No. 3 Lirnited
Bluestone Mortgage Finance No 4 Limited
Topaz Asset Finance 2016-1 DAC

Topaz Asset Finance 2016-2 DAC

Topaz Asset Finance 2017-A1 DAC

Topaz Asset Finance 2017-A2 DAC

Topaz Asset Finance 2018-81 DAC

Topaz Asset Finance 2019-1 DAC

Bluestone Capital Management Il Limited
{in liquidation)

Bluestone investment Holdings {IRE} Limited
Five Rivers 2018-1 Lirmited

Sapphire Securities Limited

Fignum Limited

Genesis Mortgage Funding 2019-1 Pic

T S S TR N R

United Kingdom
lersey *

$pain *

Ireland *

United Kingdom *
United Kingdom *
Lnited Kingdom >
United Kingdom”
United Kingdom ®
United Kingdom *
United Kingdom *
United Kingdom”
Ireland *

ireland *

United Kingdom *
United Kingdom*

United Kingdom *
7

7

freland
Ireland
treland 7
treland ’

tretand 7
Ireland ’

United Kingdom'’
United Kingdom*
United Kingdom ®
United Kingdom *
Unmited Kingdom *
United Kingdom *

Reptstared Address' 1 Station Sguare, Cambridge, England, CB1 2GA
Registered Address 22 Grenville 5t Heler lersey JE4 8PX
Registered Address Rambla de Catalunya, 86, OBO0OR Barcelona, Barcelona, Espafia
Registered Address. Umrt 18 Northwood House, Dublin 9, Ireland
Registered Address. Westfield House, 60 Charter Row, Sheffield, S1 3FZ
Registered Address: Melbourne House, 44-46 Aldwych London, England, WC2B 4LL
Registered Address: 1st Floor, 1-2 Victoria Buildings, Haddington Rd, Dublin 4
Registered Address. Westheld House, 60 Charter Row, Sheffield, 51 3FZ
Registered Address. 35 Great St Helens, London EC3A 6AP

10 gluestone Mortgage Finance No. 2 Limited was dissolved 13 Sept 2019
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Nature of % Ownership
Busingss Interest
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financia! Services 100%
Financiai Services 5%
Financiai Services 100%
Financia! Services 95%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 95%
Financial Services 95%
Financial Services 95%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services

100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Financial Services 100%
Technology Development 100%
Financial Services 100%



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

25. SUBSIDIARIES AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued]

|b} Direct subsidiaries of the Company
The Company had the following direct subsidiaries as at 30 lune 2019.

Proportion of Proportion of
shares held and inctuded in the ownership

Type of shares voting rights consalidation interest
Bluestone APAC Holdings Limited Ordinary 100% Yes 100%
Bluestone Group Finance (iersey) Limited Ordinary 100% Yes 100%
Bluestone Administrative Services {UK) Limited Ordnary 100% Yes 100%
Bluestone Mortgage Holdings Limited Ordinary 95% Yes 95%
8luestone Administrative Services (UK) Limited Ordinary 100% Yes 100%
Bluestone Credit Management Limited Ordinary 100% Yeg 100%
Bluestone Capital Management Limited Ordinary 100% Yes 100%
Bluestone Motor Finance (Ireland)} DAC Ordinary 100% Yes 100%
Bluestone Capital Management || Limited Ordinary 100% Yes 100%

Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited holds investments in subsidiaries at a cost of £18,272,038 at 30th June 2019
(2018: £19,045,980).

The carrying value of Bluestone Finance [Jersey) Limited was written down during the year to reflect the expected
recoverable balance

£
At 1 July 2018 19,045,980
Impairment ) (773,942)
At 30 June 2019 18,272,038

{c} Subsidiaries exempt from audit

The below subsidiary undertakings have claimed audit exemption under UK Companies Act 2006 section 479A with
respect to the year ended 30 June 2019. The Group parent company, Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited, has given
a statement of guarantee under Campanies Act 2006 section 479A, whereby Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited
wiil guarantee all outstanding liabilities to which the respective subsidiary companies are subject as at 30 June 2019.

Subsidiary Company Number
Bluestone APAC Holdings Limited 08754669
Bluestone Capital Management Limited 10367076
Bluestone Administrative Services (UK) 09225739
Bluestone Retail Finance Limited 08253843
Empingham Limited 04111298
Five Rivers 2018-1 Limited 11156076
Fignum Limited 11918733
Bluestone Portfolic Management (UK} Limited 06767914
Bluestone Mortgage Holdings Limited 09164380
Bluestone Mortgage Finance No. 2 Limited 09714260
Sapphire Securities Limited 11486427
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BLUESTONE CONSOUIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

25. SUBSIDIARIES AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES {continued)

{c) Subsidiaries exempt from audit {continued)

The below subsidiary undertakings have claimed audit exemption under Irish Companies Act 2014 section 357 with
respect to the year ended 30 June 2013. The Group parent company, Biuestone Consohdated Holdings Limited, has given
a statement of guarantee under UK Companies Act 2006 section 479A, whereby Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited
will guarantee all outstanding liabilities to which the respective subsidiary companies are subject as at 30 June 2019.

Subsidiary Company Number
Bluestone Motor Finance {Ireland) DAC 507250
Bluestane Asset Management {Ireland) DAC 538104

26. INCOME STATEMENT FOR BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED (THE COMPANY)

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own income

statement for the year.
Bluestone Consolidated Holdings Limited recorded a loss far the year ended 30th lune 2019 of £1,003,493 {2018 profit

£27,077,601}.
27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a vanety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk and interest rate nsk),
credit risk and figuidity risk  The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictabdity of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses
different methods to measure different types of risks to which it 1s exposed These methods include ageng analysis for
credit nsk and maturity analysis for rquidity risk.

Risk management is carried out by a central Treasury department (Treasury) under policies approved by the board of
Directors and the Group's Interest Rate Committee {IRC} Treasury evaluates, identifies and hedges financial risks.

{a} Market Risk
(i} Foreign Exchange Risk
The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date was partiaily hedged by assets in the currency of

funding, however the EUR cash position remained unhedged. As the cash balances held in foreign currencies is low the
directors consider this low risk.
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HCLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
(i) Foreign Exchange Risk (continued)

The table below illustrates the Group’s financial assets ang habilities denominated in foreign currencies:

30 June 2019

EUR £ AUD £
Cash 34,1560
Interest Bearing Financial Liabilities {102,655,571) -
Loans held at amortised cost 108,118,057 .
Financial habilities at fair value through
profit or loss - -

30 June 2018

EUR £ AUD £
Cash 322,626 79,206
Interest Beaning Financial Liabthties (87,522,177) -
Loans held at amortised cost 83,827,035

Finangial habilities at fair value through
profit cr loss - -

Sensitivity

The Group's financial assets and liabilities denominated in EUR above represent financial assets/liabilities of the Group's
foreign entities operating in Ireland. Due to the Group's hedging activities, the change of GBP rates against the EUR would
only result in immaterial movements in the Income Staterment.

(i) Interest rate risk
The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from mortgage and vehicle loans, cash deposits and interest bearing liabilities,

The Group’s borrowings are issued at both fixed and variable rates and expose the Group to interest rate risk Mortgage
and vehicle loans that are written at varnable rates and cash deposits also expose the Group to interest rate risk, however
the risk is naturally hedged by the variable rate borrowings. Mortgages written at fixed interest rates are hedged with
interest rate swaps to match the borrowings used to fund the mortgages. It 1s company policy to hedge 100% of the
outstanding balance of fixed rate loans. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting mortgage loans
from fixed rates to floating rates.

The notes to the financial statements set out the details of each class of financial asset/habilities and set out whether
interest 1s earned/paid on a floating rate and the weighted average interest cost for the financial year.



BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

{ii} Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity
Had interest rates been 25 bps higher with all other variables held constant, it is estimated Group’s results would have
been impacted as follows:

_ Group ,
2019 2018
£ £
Profit after tax - lower {17,400) 3,607
Equity - (lower}/higher {21,091) 4,373

The parent entity has no material sensitivity to interest rates

{b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the nisk that a counterparty will default in its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss ta the
Group. Credit risk 1s managed on a Group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments, deposits with banks and financiat institytions and mortgage loans.

The carrying value of financial assets recorded in the financial staterments, net of any allowances for losses, represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of martgage or vehicle loan customer credit risk. Loans consist of a large
number of customers spread across diverse geographical areas within UK and Ireland. The Group has procedures in place
to ensure that sales of mortgage & loan products were made to customers within the Group's credit and security policy
criteria The Group retains the registered mortgages/loans over security property/asset until the loans are repaid. The
Group is entitfed to take possession of and enforce of secunity property/asset in the event that the customer defaults
under the terms of their loan

The foliowing table demanstrates the split of the Group’s mortgage & vehicle loans based on the borrowers financia!
record to defaults, arrears and bankruptcy at origination:

Ratings Consolidated
2019 2018
£ f
Clear 144,247,201 43,385,076
Alt-Doc o 0
AAA 71,852,373 34,203,703
AA 81,493,221 59,994,777
A 13,869,520 4,403,808
BBB 4,864,214 907,913
316,426,529 142,895,277
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b} Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to the mortgage & vehicle loans is limited as although the assets are consolidated in the Group
financial statements, they sit within quarantined $PEs with no recourse to the Group. Losses on mortgage & vehicle loans
are therefore lirmited to the Group's investments in notes in these SPEs. These total £7,571,203 (2018: £5,416,643) and
any losses in excess of Bluestone's equity and retained notes will be borne by the third party note investors

The Group's approach to identifying an applicant's credit rating level is shown in the table below.
The parent entity anly has exposure to credit risk from related and consolidated entities

Nan-Conforming

Credit Rating Levels Clear AAA AA A [ BBB
Defaults - Number (inc.
defaults, judgements, writs 1 (sa:;s::tc:jsm 36 10 36 months 2.n 36 months | 3 1in 36 manths | 41n 36 months
and summaons)
Mortgage Arrears and Rent 0in 1324 2in13-24 3in13-24 4in13-24
Arrears - full month payment, 1in 13-24 months

months months months months
number of instances
:iz:r;zt?a{_gir;o or (VA {time >6 years > 3 years >3 years > 3 years > 3 years

As at the reporting date, receivables under derivative financial instruments are with swap counterparties with a Fitch
rating of A or above (2017: A).

Mortgage Ioan balances where security is held over the property have an assessed value of £208,308,472 at 30 June 2013

(2018: £59,068,242). The valuations of the underlying security properties have been performed at the later of the onginal
loan apphication date or subsequent loan variation date, and do not take into account any realisation costs
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BLUESTONE CONSOLIDATED HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b} Credit risk [continued)

The following table demonstrates the mortgage & vehicle loan balances past due at the reporting date:

Consclidated
Loan Status 2019 2018
£ £

Current Loans 296,833,610 124,126,347
0-30 days 8,125,277 3,494,719
31-60 days 3,707,210 7,416,732
61-90 days 2,596,096 2,431,174
91-180 days 1,205,874 3,750,144
180+ 3,958,462 1,676,161
Arrears Loans 19,592,919 18,768,930
Total Loans 316,426,529 142,895,277

The valuaticn of the collateral of the lpans in arrears at the balance sheet date 1s £3,064,990 (2018: £425,000)

A provision of £2,642,396 has been raised against the assets shown in the table above. The provision for doubtfu! debts
includes individually assessed provisions and collectively assessed provisions. Indivdually assessed provisions are based
on an independent valuation of the security adjusted by any cast of selling, less the outstanding loan balance. In arriving
at the collectively assessed provisions the Company makes judgements as to whether there 1s any observable data which
indicates there is a significant decrease 1n the estimated future cash flows from mortgage receivables before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a portfolic or local economic conditiens that correlate with
defaults on assets in the portfolic The Company uses a rating agency model to establish expected credit losses on the
ipan portfolic based on a number of loan characteristics. In accordance with IFRS 9 the Company accounts for 12 months
of ECLs on performing assets [generally less than 90 days in arrears with no other indication of increased credit risk) and
lifatime ECLs on under performing or non-performing assets {30+ days arrears or where the company 1s actively trying to
or has recovered the asset).

At the reporting date, the Group has taken possession of security assets within its mortgage and vehicle loan portfolio

with a current loan batance of £217,316 (2018: nil} A prowvision of £117,374 {2018: nil} has been raised against these
loans.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued}

{c) Liquidity risk

Prudent higuidity nisk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of commuitted credit faciliies. The Group’s Treasury department aims to ensure
that suffigient cash and credit facilities are maintained to meet funding requirements.

The Group’s finance department also monitors forecast and actual cash flows to ensure that sufficient cash resources
and/ar financing facilities are in place to ensure the Group can meet its corporate debts as and when they fall due.

The Group’s mortgage lpan balances are typically repayable over 25 or 30 years. Although the majority of the Group's
borrowings match the terms of the assets via the securitised trusts, the Group borrows from other sources with differing
maturity profiles, these are set cut below:

Term Bands payable

Term bonds payable are residential mortgage backed securities {RMBS) issuad by the Group’s Securtised Trusts They are
25-30 year pass through securities that may be repard early (1.e. at the call date} by the issuer in certain circumstances at
the option of the Group.

Warehouse Facilities

Warehouse facilities are typically short term funding facilities with maturities up to 24 months, before being refinanced in
the term markets. Afl of the Group's facilities expire in excess of 6 months from the date of signing the financial
statements

The Group's Treasury department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping surplus un-drawn warehouse
facilities avaifable. At 30 June 2019 the Group has £50,320,918 {2018: £212,575,937) of undrawn warehouse facilities.

If a warehouse facility 15 not renewed or otherwise defaults and the related assets are hquidated, the primary impact for
the Group would be the loss of future income streams from excess spread, being the difference between our morigage
rate and the cost of funds, fee income and write-off of any unamortised balance of deferred transactions costs and loss of
equity and retained notes.

The Directors are satisfied that any safe of mortgages in order to repay warehouse facilities or in an event of default in
relation to the Group’s warehouse facilities wilt not affect the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Warehouse Facilities {continued)

The maturity profile of financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments of the Group i1s demonstrated in the

following table:

Group - 30 June 2019

Between 1 & 2

Between 2 &5

6 Months or Less | 6-12 Months Over 5 Years
years years
£ £ £ £ £
Interest Bearing Financia! (18,713,347) (18,713,347) (4,311,841) {560,580)| (282,563,891)
Derivative Financial - - - - -
Derivative Financial - - - - -
Total (18,713,347) {18,713,347) {4,311,841) (560,580} (282,563,831)

Group - 30 June 2018

Between 1 &2

Batween 2 & 5

6 Months or Less | 6 - 12 Months Over 5 Years
years years
E £ £ £ £
Interest Bearing Financial {8,280,913) {8,280,913}) {1,943,333) {257,923)] ({122,383,11¢6)
Derwative Financial - - - - -
Derivative Financial - - - - -
Total (8,280,913) {8.280,913) {1,943,333) {257,923)| (122,383,116}

The parent entity has no financial liabilities.

The above analysis is based on the remaiming period at the reporting date to the expected maturity date, assuming
renewal of warehouse facilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest
date at which repayment is required, however it should be noted that funding 1s arranged on a “pass through’ basis and
therefore there i1s an element of principal amortisation in each funding facility prior to repayment. The expected principal-
pass-through to the funders is based on the expected principal receipts from mortgage loans Calculations of expected
principal receipts on mortgage loans have been derived using prepayment assumptions that are based on historic actual

experience

In the case of Asset Backed Securtties, the matunty analysis assumes that the 1ssuer {being one of the Group's Securitised
SPEs} will not opt to repay the securities at the call date, but rather, that they will be repaid at their respective maturity

dates.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

28. CONTINGENT LIABILITES

The group and company are currently assessing the likely impact of a recent ruling n relation to the tax treatment of
arrangements associated with the Australian business disposed of in the prior year, the cutcome of which cannot readily
be foreseen. At this stage no rehable estimate of the impact on the group and company, if any, can be made.

29. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 16 August 2019 Bluesteone Finance 1 Limited securitised €28,822,023 of loan receivables at a premium to par of
€2,132,830, with a commitment to sell a further €13,654,573 of ioan recewvables at a premium to par of €718,661 to

Topaz Asset Finance 2019-1 DAC a related parted by virtue of being controlled by Bluestone Consolidated Holdings
Limited

On 28 August 2019 Bluestone Mortgages Limited completed its first UK RMBS issuance backed by originated mortgages
with the £210m Genesis 2019-1 securitisation

On 22 August 2019 the group increased the capacity on the Bluestone Martgage Finance No 3 Limited warehouse facility
to £278m.

30. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

There is no ultirmate controlling party.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

31. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The results for the current and prior year for the Australia and New Zealand subsidiaries have been presented as
discontinued operatigns, following the sale of the subsidiaries on 28 March 2018.

2019 2018
£ £
Interest income - 33,804,555
Iinterest expense and similar charges - (20,127,798}
Net intarest income . 13,676,757
Net fee and commission income - 2,036,834
Other income - {1,164,841)
- 871,993
Total income net of interest and other expense - 14,548,750
Expenses:
Marketing - {469,205)
Depreciation - {98,563)
Employee costs . (6,516,665}
Professional fees - {1,539,369)
General office costs - (740,263)
Occupancy costs - (233,614)
Bad debt expense - (1,083,209}
Travel and Entertainment - (329,507)
Other expenses from ordinary activities - (125,597)
Total operating expenses - {11,135,998)
Profit before income tax - 3,412,752
Income tax expense - {796,896)
Profit for the year - 2,615,856
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations - 19,803,754
Total profit for the year from discontinued operations - 22,319,610
Analysis of the profit on disposal of discontinued operations 15 as follows:
2019 2018
£ £
Proceeds . 43,599,632
Net assets disposed - (18,161,845)
Transactions costs - (2,842,332)
FX translation reserve recycled through profit and loss - (3,191,701}
Profit on sale - 19,803,754

.54-



